Public Document Pack

AGENDA
HEALTH AND PUBLIC PROTECTION
SCRUTINY PANEL
Date:

Tuesday, 22 March 2022

Time:

6.00 pm

Venue:

Collingwood Room - Civic Offices

Members:
Councillor

Miss J Bull (Chairman)

Councillor

Ms S Pankhurst (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors

Mrs P M Bryant
Mrs T L Ellis
J M Englefield
Miss T G Harper
G Kelly

Deputies:

P J Davies
L Keeble
Mrs K K Trott

Page 1

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel held on 18 January 2022.

3.

Chairman's Announcements

4.

Declarations of Interest and Disclosures or Advice or Directions
To receive any declarations of interest from members in accordance with Standing
Orders and the Council’s Code of Conduct and disclosures of advice or directions
received from Group Leaders or Political Groups, in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution.

5.

Deputations
To receive any deputations of which notice has been lodged.

6.

Executive Business (Pages 9 - 10)
To consider any items of business dealt with by the Executive since the last meeting
of the Panel, that falls under the remit of the Health and Public Protection Portfolio.
This will include any decisions taken by individual Members during the same time
period.

7.

(1)

Renewal of Environmental Health Partnership Agreement (Pages 11 - 12)

(2)

Council owned car parks Traffic Regulation Order - consideration of
consultation responses (Pages 13 - 16)

Executive Member Update
To receive a verbal update from the Executive Member on matters relating to the
Health and Public Protection portfolio, e.g the Police and Crime Panel and Local
Strategic Health issues.

8.

Motion proposing height barriers at Portchester Precinct Car Park (Pages 17 28)
To consider a motion presented to Council by Councillor R H Price, JP in respect of
the provision of height barriers at the entrances to Portchester precinct car park.

9.

Health and Public Protection Scrutiny Panel Priorities
To provide an opportunity for Members to consider the scrutiny priorities for the
Health and Public Protection Panel.

Page 2

P GRIMWOOD
Chief Executive Officer
Civic Offices
www.fareham.gov.uk
10 March 2022

For further information please contact:
Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ
Tel:01329 236100
democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the
Health and Public Protection Scrutiny
Panel
(to be confirmed at the next meeting)
Date:

Tuesday, 18 January 2022

Venue:

Council Chamber - Civic Offices

PRESENT:
Councillor

Miss J Bull (Chairman)

Councillor

Ms S Pankhurst (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

Mrs P M Bryant, Mrs T L Ellis, J M Englefield, Miss T G Harper
and G Kelly

Also
Present:

Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE, Executive Member for Health
and Public Protection

Page 5

Health
and
Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel

1.

18 January 2022

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence received at this meeting.

2.

MINUTES
An amendment to the minutes of the meeting held on 18 August 2021 was
agreed to note that apologies were received from Councillor G Kelly.
RESOLVED that, subject to the amendment above, the minutes of the meeting
of the Health and Public Protection Scrutiny Panel held on 18 August 2021 be
confirmed and signed as a correct record.

3.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
There were no Chairman’s announcements.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURES OR ADVICE OR
DIRECTIONS
Councillor J M Englefield declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of item 7
as he works for the NHS.

5.

DEPUTATIONS
There were no deputations made at this meeting.

6.

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS
(1)

Draft Agreement with English Heritage regarding charging at the
Council's Portchester Castle car parks

There were no questions or comments for clarification in respect of this item.
7.

EXECUTIVE MEMBER UPDATE
Councillor J M Englefield declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of this
item as he works for the NHS.
The Panel received a verbal update from Councillor T M Cartwright MBE, the
Executive Member for Health and Public Protection, on matters relating to the
Health and Public Protection portfolio.
Local Health Matters
Councillor Cartwright reported that the position with local health matters
appears to be rather dismal at the moment with no improvement in tackling
ongoing issues. Disappointingly, Covid-19 is being used as an excuse for the
lack of progress. Sovereign Healthcare is the biggest concern at present, with
unacceptable levels of service being reported by many residents. Meetings
that were arranged in January and February to consider how improvements
can be made have all now been postponed until March. Councillor Cartwright
Page 6

Health
and
Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel

18 January 2022

reported that he has received a letter from Sarah Tiller, Associate Director for
Community and Engagement for the Fareham & Gosport Clinic
Commissioning Group (CCG) which talks about the support that the CCG is
providing to Sovereign Healthcare and reports that they believe the practice is
showing dedication in trying to move forward.
Councillor Cartwright advised the Panel that he would be attending the
Portsmouth City Council Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel meeting on
Thursday. The agenda includes updates from the Portsmouth Hospital
University Trust, the Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust and Public
Health.
Councillor Cartwright gave an update on the South Central Ambulance
Service, reporting that Sir Keith Willett has been appointed as the new
Chairman of the Service. Councillor Cartwright was sad to report that the
Service has received over 2,000 Hoax calls over the last 2 years.
Police and Crime Panel
Councillor Cartwright advised that Jason Kenney, the old District Commander
for Fareham & Gosport has been appointed as the Chief Executive of the
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. Mark Lewis, the current District
Commander, will be leaving Fareham & Gosport to take up a Superintendent
role in charge of the Response Team in Hampshire. A replacement District
Commander appointment has yet to be made.
The Police and Crime Panel has asked to see baseline police officer figures
since 2010 in order to verify whether the promised increase in numbers is
being achieved. Councillor Cartwright was pleased to report that base line
numbers are indeed increasing and are currently ahead of requirements. The
Police and Crime Panel intends to ensure that this continues to be the case.
Councillor Cartwright advised members that there had recently been a series
of thefts from cars in the Fareham area and was pleased to report that a local
man was arrested on the 9th January this year and is now serving a 4-month
custodial sentence.
At the instigation of the new Police and Crime Commissioner, Hampshire
Constabulary has been renamed as Hampshire and Isle of Wight
Constabulary. There has not been any active re-branding and changes will
take place over time to avoid any costs.
Councillor Cartwright advised that the next meeting of the Police and Crime
Panel will be held on Friday 28 January and that the precept for 2022/23 will
be discussed. The consultation process has been completed in order that the
Commissioner can request the maximum increase, and this is likely to be
awarded.
Applications for grants from the Safer Communities Fund for 2022/23 have
been received and there are 12 applications in this area, 3 of which will be
supported by Fareham’s Community Safety Manager as they are very helpful
to the Community Safety Partnership.
Page 7

Health
and
Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel

18 January 2022

RESOLVED that Councillor Cartwright, Executive Member for Health and
Public Protection, be thanked for providing the update.
8.

AVAILABILITY OF BURIAL PLOTS IN THE COUNCIL'S CEMETERIES
At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE addressed
the Panel on this item.
The Panel received a presentation by the Head of Streetscene which outlined
the availability of burial plots in the Council’s cemeteries. A copy of the
presentation is attached to these minutes as Appendix A.
Members raised concern that the new community at Welborne will erode the
current provision at Wickham Road cemetery much more quickly than
expected as there is no provision for burial plots made within the Welborne
plans. As there is nothing in Planning Regulations that requires burial plot
provision, it was agreed that this may be something to be considered further.
RESOLVED that having considered the presentation and asked questions for
clarification, the Health and Public Protection Scrutiny Panel notes the content
of the presentation.

9.

HEALTH AND PUBLIC PROTECTION SCRUTINY PANEL PRIORITIES
In considering the Scrutiny Priorities for the Panel, it was agreed that a
representative from the Portchester Crematorium be invited to attend the next
meeting of the Panel to provide members with the opportunity to scrutinise
how the Crematorium will move towards achieving zero carbon and to assess
the level of resilience at the Crematorium in maintaining services if one of the
burners malfunctions. The Panel agreed that the Director of Leisure and
Community be authorised to complete the scoping report for inclusion in the
invitation to the Crematorium so that as much notice as possible can be
provided.
RESOLVED that the Health and Public Protection Scrutiny Panel agrees that:
(a) the Director of Leisure and Community be authorised to prepare a
scoping report based on the items outlined above; and
(b) a representative of the Portchester Crematorium be invited to the next
meeting of the Panel to answer the points raised on the scoping report.
(The meeting started at 6.00 pm
and ended at 7.15 pm).

Page 8

Agenda Item 6

Report to
Health and Public Protection Scrutiny
Panel
Date

22 March 2022

Report of:

Director of Leisure and Community

Subject:

EXECUTIVE BUSINESS

.
SUMMARY
One of the key functions of the Scrutiny Panels is to hold the Executive Portfolio Holder and
Senior Officers to account in the delivery of the service and the Improvement Actions identified
in the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Corporate Vision.
Members are therefore invited to consider the items of business that fall under the remit of the
Health and Public Protection portfolio and have been dealt with by the Executive since the last
meeting of the Panel. This also includes any decisions taken by individual Executive Members.
The relevant notices for decisions taken are attached for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Members consider the items of Business discharged by the Executive
since the last meeting of the Panel and make any comments or raise any questions for
clarification.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6(1)

FAREHAM
BOROUGH COUNCIL
2021/22
Decision No.
2341

Record of Decision by Executive
Monday, 7 February 2022
Portfolio

Health and Public Protection

Subject:

Renewal of Environmental Health Partnership
Agreement

Report of:

Director of Leisure and Community

Corporate Priority:

Protect and enhance the environment

Purpose:
That the Executive delegates authority to the Chief Executive Officer to renew the
Environmental Health Partnership Agreement with Gosport Borough Council on an
open-ended basis with appropriate clauses to allow for future reviews and/or
termination.
The latest agreement between the two Councils in respect of the Environmental
Health Partnership was for a period of 5 years from 01 April 2014 until 31 March
2019. Prior to the pandemic, work was underway to renew the agreement, however
progress has been hampered over the last couple of years or so. The current
Partnership Agreement has technically expired and a new one needs to be put into
place for the legal and financial security of both Councils.

Options Considered:
As recommendation.

Decision:
RESOLVED that the Executive agrees to delegate authority to the Chief Executive
Officer, following consultation with the Executive Member for Health and Public
Protection, to renew the Environmental Health Partnership Agreement with Gosport
Borough Council on an open-ended basis with appropriate clauses to allow for future
reviews and/or termination.

Reason:
The Environmental Health Partnership is continuing to offer good value for money,
resilience and a good quality Service to Fareham Borough Council. The Agreement,
which underpins it, has expired and it would be prudent to see a new partnership
agreement put into place as detailed above.
Page 11

Confirmed as a true record:
Councillor SDT Woodward (Executive Leader)

Monday, 7 February 2022

Page 12

Agenda Item 6(2)

FAREHAM
BOROUGH COUNCIL
2021/22
Decision No.
2349

Record of Decision by Executive Portfolio for Health
and Public Protection
Tuesday, 22 February 2022
Portfolio

Health & Public Protection

Subject:

Fareham Borough Car Parks Traffic Regulation Order consideration of consultation responses

Report of:

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Corporate Priority:

Dynamic, prudent and progressive Council

Purpose:
This report sets out the results of the recent Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
consultation for the following car parks: - Portchester Precinct, Holly Hill car park
Barnes Lane Sarisbury, Barnes Close car park Sarisbury, Broadcut Retail Park
Fareham, Cams Alders car park Fareham, Passage Lane car park Warsash,
Burridge Village Hall car park (Main) Botley Road Burridge. The Executive Member
for Health and Public Protection is requested to consider the consultation responses
and make a decision on the adoption of an updated Off-Street Parking Order.
There are a number Off-Street Car Parks in the Borough which have not seen their
terms of parking amended since 2017. Over the period from then until now a number
of issues have arisen and there is a need to amend the terms for a number of the car
parks. These issues have been bought to the Council’s Notice, by its own Property &
Enforcement Teams, members of the public and Elected Members. The affected car
parks are Portchester Precinct car park, Holly Hill, Barnes Close, Broadcut Retail
Park, Burridge Village Hall Car Park (Main) and Cams Alders Car Park. In addition, a
small amendment is required to Passage Lane Car park, following the recent
introduction of charging there.
The following amendments to the Traffic Regulation Order were consulted upon
between 21st January 2022 and 4th February 2022.
Portchester Precinct
In July 2017, the Executive approved a Regeneration Vision for Portchester Village
Centre entitled ‘Putting the Village Back in Portchester’ (the Vision). After extensive
consultation, the Vision was finalised and set out a future strategy to help regenerate
Portchester Village Centre. Following the approval of the Vision in January 2018 an
Executive Report was presented giving details of opportunities to change parking
arrangements in the Council’s car parks to the south of the village centre.
Page 13

The Vision for Portchester identified potential changes to the car park, which
reflected the views of local people to have free and accessible parking that meets
the needs of local residents and village centre users, including young families.
The effects of this proposed amendment are: 

The proposed car park improvements would provide more short stay spaces
(maximum stay 3 hours) closer to the pedestrian precinct, with fewer long stay
spaces but well orientated to the surrounding community uses. Overall, there
will be no net loss of public car parking spaces, whilst facilitating the
redevelopment of Assheton Court and maintaining the existing Long Stay East
car park for future short-term parking.



It would introduce parent and child parking bays, conveniently located to the
smaller Short Stay car park close to the pedestrian precinct.



Relocate and increase the number of disabled parking bays, again to the
smaller Short Stay car park close to the pedestrian precinct.



It would remove the Lorry Park, but then provide spaces for smaller Light
Goods Vehicles that are to be accommodated in part of the new Short Stay
South car park, allowing small goods vehicle to utilise the car park. The existing
lorry park would then be converted into car parking spaces to increase the
capacity. It is envisaged that Light Goods Vehicles will be allowed to park
overnight (24 hours) to deter parking in residential streets.



The former Lorry Park and the smaller Long Stay car park (south of the Lorry
Park) would be combined to provide a single Long Stay car park.

Holly Hill Park Car Park Barnes Lane Sarisbury
Currently parking is allowed for 24 hours, this needs to be amended to 4 hours
maximum stay with no return for 4 hours.
Complaints from customers and children’s nursery nearby that work vans working in
the area are staying in the carpark all day taking up valuable parking bays for other
customers visiting the location and country park.
Barnes Close Car Park Sarisbury
Introduce 4 hours with no return for 4 hours restriction.
This car park is located on the other side from Holly Hill Park with 4 disabled bays
and 6 normal parking bays, if we enforce Holly Hill with limited wait it will push
vehicles into this carpark where there are currently no restrictions.
Broadcut Retail Park
Introduce a 3 hours limited wait with a no return of 5 hours.
This is a new car park for the TRO to cover, complaints have been received from
retailers including Pure Gym that lease the units and customers that vehicles are
being left in the carpark all day and vehicles are parking in disabled parking bays
with no valid Blue Badge.
Page 14

Cams Alders Car Park
Introduce a 4-hour limited wait with no return for 4 hours
This is by the Rainbow Centre in Cams Alders; it is a new location for the TRO to
cover. Complaints have been received from residents in Highfield Avenue that
vehicles are being stored in the small section of the carpark, we have evidence of
vehicles without Tax frequently being stored there. This will also support the Football
Club, the Rainbow Centre and other visitors to the car park.
Passage Lane Warsash
To permit motorcycles if parked in a designated motorcycled bay.
Prior to the recent introduction of charging, there was no provision for motorcycle
parking, following a complaint from a member of the public, provision of motorcycle
parking has been introduced.
Burridge Village Hall Car Park (Main)
Complaints have been received from users of this car park, that it is used by nonVillage Hall users for long periods of time. To reduce the opportunity for this it is
proposed to introduce a maximum period of stay of 2 hours with a no return to the
car park within 2 hours.
Consultation Results
There were only 3 responses received from residents. Two of the responses related
to concern about the proposed changes to the lorry park, in that there would be
nowhere for them to park and one was concerned that the car park would be
developed for housing.
The final proposed Order
Appendix A contains the proposed Off-Street Parking Places (Amendment 5) Order
2022 for approval. The main provisions are detailed above.
Conclusion
Public consultation results are summarised above and presented for consideration
alongside an updated Off-Street Parking Order.

Options Considered:
As recommendation.

Decision:
RESOLVED that, having considered the representations made, the Executive
Member for Health and Public Protection agrees to adopt the updated Off-Street
Parking Places (Amendment 5) Order found at Appendix A to the report.

Page 15

Reason:
As detailed above

Confirmed as a true record:
Councillor T M Cartwright, MBE (Executive Member for Health & Public Protection)

Tuesday, 22 February 2022

Page 16

Agenda Item 8

Report to the Health and
Public Protection Scrutiny Panel
Date

22 March 2022

Report of:

Director of Leisure and Community

Subject:

Motion proposing height barriers at Portchester Precinct Car Park

SUMMARY
Following two illegal traveller encampments in the large car park at Portchester Precinct in
2021, a Notice of Motion was submitted to Council on 05 October 2021 proposing that
height barriers be erected at the entrances and exits to the southwestern car park with
immediate effect. The purpose of the barriers would be to restrict access to travellers’
caravans and light goods vehicles. There are several considerations to be considered in
respect of this request as height barriers would adversely affect other car park users, are
not present in other district shopping centres, and would be an additional cost for the
Council to meet.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Health and Public Protection Scrutiny Panel:
(a) considers the contents of this report;
(b) determines whether it would be reasonable, proportionate, cost effective and
affordable to install the height barriers as requested; and
(c) agrees a recommendation to Council in respect of the motion proposed.

Page 17

INTRODUCTION
1. In accordance with the Council’s “Standing Orders with Respect to Meetings”, a Notice
of Motion was submitted to Council on 5 October 2021, requesting that barriers be
erected at the entrance and exit points to the southwestern Portchester Precinct Car
Park.
2. The specific wording of the Notice of Motion is as follows:
“Due to costs for the Council in removing Travellers and to protect the Residents/Public
from the issues of Travellers parking in the large car park at Portchester Precinct. I
request that height barriers be erected at the Entrance and Exit off of the road from
Jubilee Road and the Entrance/Exit off the road leading to Assheton Court with
immediate effect.”
3. A marked-up image of the car park was also submitted with the motion, which can be
seen at Appendix 1.
4. At the meeting on 21 October 2021, Council referred the item to the Health and Public
Protection Scrutiny Panel to consider and make a recommendation to Council.
BACKGROUND
5. During 2021 there were, at the large Portchester Precinct Car Park, next to Jubilee
Road, two separate traveller encampments on 5 August 2021 and 12 September 2021.
The travellers were able to gain easy access for their vehicles and caravans, to the car
park as there are no height restriction barriers in place at the car park.
6. Prior to the two encampments in 2021, it is understood that the Portchester Precinct car
park has not experienced any traveller encampments for at least the last 10 years.
7. The details regarding the two encampments that occurred in 2021 are as follows:
FIRST ENCAMPMENT - 5 AUGUST 2021
5 August 2021 Travellers arrived with 2 caravans and 3 associated
vehicles.
6 August 2021 Council served a Notice to Quit Letter
9 August 2021 Council served the required further Notices
10 August 2021 Council attended Court with evidence and papers then
served court papers and supporting paperwork on travellers,
confirming intention to seek possession of Council’s land
with a Court Hearing date set for Monday 16 August 2021 at
3.30pm.
13 August 2021 The 2 caravans and 3 vehicles left the encampment. A
complaint about sewage waste being put down private drain
nearby was received.

Page 18

14 August 2021 Court Hearing cancelled.

SECOND ENCAMPMENT - 12 SEPTEMBER 2021
12 September 2021 Travellers arrived with 5 caravans and 5 associated
vehicles.
13 September 2021

Council served a Notice to Quit Letter and required Notices

16 September 2021 Council attended Court with evidence and papers then
served court papers and supporting paperwork on Travellers
that day, confirming intention to seek possession of
Council’s land with a Court Hearing date set for Tuesday 21
September 2021 at 10.00am.
17 September 2021 3 caravans and 3 vehicles left the encampment.
20 September 2021 The remaining 2 caravans and 2 vehicles left the location.
20 September 2021 Court hearing cancelled.

8. Both of the above encampments resulted in the following issues:


Disruption to the operation of the car park – The area occupied by the caravans and
vehicles could not be used for parking, and car park users did not want to park close
to the caravans.



Complaints from nearby residents were received in respect of crime and disorder
and the fear of crime and disorder. Specifically, complaints were received about a
blocked private drain, which was believed to have been caused by the travellers
emptying their chemical toilet cartridges into it. There was no damage to the car
park itself caused by either encampment.



Legal costs were £778.00 for the first encampment, and £1,128.00 for the second.
These were incurred by the Council in respect of the enforcement and legal process
required to obtain possession of the Council’s land. There was also a cost of
£100.00 for the removal of bagged waste from the area, and £160.00 to unblock the
drain.

LEGAL POSITION
9. When Travellers set up illegal encampments on Council land, the Council’s only option
is to apply to either the Magistrates Court or County Court to obtain an order to evict
them. However, the Council must consider each encampment on its own merits and
whether the eviction route is the correct course of action in the circumstances. The
Council must have regard to the group’s health, safety and welfare and also to their
Human Rights and needs to comply with the requirements of the Equality Act.
10. In some circumstances the Police can use their emergency powers under the Criminal
Justice and Public Order Act 1994, to secure their removal immediately. To be able to
use these powers, certain criteria must be met in respect of actual damage to the land
Page 19

or property, or there must be at least six vehicles or caravans present.
11. The Police were contacted regarding both encampments and attended the site to speak
with Council officers and the travellers. However, they felt that, on both occasions, the
criteria for using their emergency powers had not been met.
12. The Director of Leisure and Community spoke with the Chief Inspector, District
Commander for Fareham and Gosport, at the time to raise concerns and further explore
the specifics around management of unlawful encampments in Council owned Public
Car Parks.


The Chief Inspector stated that the Police are unable to pre-determine specific
actions ahead of an unlawful encampment, inferring that each occasion would be
dealt with on its own merits.



As the impact on residents, businesses and the local economy when a car park
encampment is established is much greater than when an encampment is
established on other open spaces, the Director of Leisure and Community asked the
Chief Inspector to consider using the Section 61 & 62 powers (Criminal Justice and
Public Order Act 1994) when an encampment occurs in a Council owned car park.
The Chief Inspector advised that the police do not view car parks in a different way
to other open land. However, if a site was of Special Scientific Interest, or significant
impact on the economy as a direct result of the encampment could be evidenced,
then the Police would be more likely to exercise their powers.



The Chief Inspector advised that the Police are awaiting guidance following the
Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill legislation which is at the report stage in
the House of Lords.

FEASIBILITY OF PREVENTATIVE MEASURES
13. The motion to Council is requesting “that Height barriers be erected at the Entrance and
Exit off of the road from Jubilee Road and the Entrance/Exit off the road leading to
Assheton Court with immediate effect.”
14. It is possible that the car park did have height barriers at some point in the past, but
Council records do not exist to determine when this was, and when and why they were
removed. It is thought that the change may have occurred when Portchester Precinct
was pedestrianised many years ago, to allow for delivery vehicles to access the back of
the shops to make their deliveries, but this cannot be confirmed.
15. In recent years the car park in question has not had any height barriers and the
established use of the car park now includes Market Traders with their light goods
vehicles on Tuesdays, which is when the Portchester Market takes place.
16. If height barriers were installed with the intention of stopping travellers from accessing
the car park, then they would need to be at a height that would also stop market traders
and delivery vehicles from accessing it.
17. If they were installed and left open on market days, this would leave the car park
exposed on Tuesdays, and still prevent delivery vehicles from accessing the car park
on other days of the week.
18. Where the Council has installed lockable barriers in other locations, the locks have
Page 20

been forced by travellers to gain successful entry.
19. This particular car park is also used by local residents to park light goods vehicles (work
vans etc) overnight, as parking is limited in many of the residential streets nearby. If
barriers were to be installed, this would cause parking issues in nearby roads and
streets, which would likely lead to complaints by both those residents currently using the
car park for overnight parking, and the residents living in the nearby streets and roads
who may have access to their properties and kerbside parking restricted.
20. Although the installation of three height barriers, as indicated at Appendix 1 could deter
travellers from establishing an encampment on the southwestern car park, there would
need to be a further seven barriers installed at all other access points to the other car
park areas on the same site to deter an encampment from being established within close
proximity to the car park in question. Please see Appendix 2
21. There are no height barriers currently installed at any other district centres throughout
the Borough.
PREVIOUS EXECUTIVE DECISION
22. In December 2019 the Executive considered a report which provided an update on the
regeneration of Portchester Village Centre. The Vision for Portchester identified
potential changes to the car park, which reflected the views of local people to have free
and accessible parking that meets the needs of local residents and village centre users,
including young families.
23. The Executive report set out a preliminary design for the preferred revised arrangement
with the objectives of the schemes as follows:


The proposed car park improvements would provide more short stay spaces closer
to the pedestrian precinct, with fewer long stay spaces but well orientated to the
surrounding community uses. Overall, there will be no net loss of public car parking
spaces, whilst facilitating the redevelopment of Assheton Court and maintaining the
existing Long Stay East car park for future short-term parking;



It would introduce parent and child parking bays, conveniently located to the smaller
Short Stay car park close to the pedestrian precinct;



Relocate and increase the number of disabled parking bays, again to the smaller
Short Stay car park close to the pedestrian precinct;



It would remove the Lorry Park, but then provide spaces for smaller Light Goods
Vehicles that are to be accommodated in part of the new Short Stay South car park,
allowing small goods vehicles to utilise the car park. The existing lorry park would
then be converted into car parking spaces to increase the capacity. It is envisaged
that lorries and Heavy Goods Vehicles will be allowed to park overnight to deter
parking in residential streets;



The former Lorry Park and the smaller Long Stay car park (south of the Lorry Park)
would be combined to provide a single Long Stay car park;



The proposals would look to improve the signage within, to and from the car parks.

24. The Executive agreed the following actions:
Page 21



that further work is undertaken by officers to ensure that up-to-date information on
car park use is used to support work developing a detailed design car park scheme;
and



that Officers undertake a procurement exercise to develop and deliver a detailed
scheme design to implement improvements to the southern public car parks and
pedestrian linkages to the Portchester (Village) Centre, prior to consulting on a TRO
in the summer of 2020. The objectives and detailed provisions of the revised parking
scheme previously agreed by the Executive would clearly be wholly undermined by
any proposals to introduce height barriers which restrict access to the car parks.

25. In terms of implementation of the proposals, this has unfortunately been significantly
impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic. With the gradual recovery of the local economy
during last year it was possible for officers to ensure that up-to-date information on car
park use is used to support further work developing a detailed design car park scheme.
A revised Traffic Regulation Order setting out the proposed improvements was agreed
by the Executive Member for Health and Public Protection on 22 February 2022,
following a period of public consultation. Procurement of the car park works is now
underway with a view to their phased implementation and completion by the end of the
calendar year.
FUNDING
26. The indicative cost of installing the three height barriers as requested is £4,000 per
barrier, so approx. £12,000 in total. There is currently no budget identified to meet this
cost.
27. Further costs would include maintenance and operating costs to open and close the
barriers when necessary. There is currently no budget identified to meet these costs.
28. There is also some concern that the installation of height barriers may result in the loss
of some nearby trees, which would need to be investigated further, but would be at cost
to the Council.
RISK ASSESSMENT
29. There are no significant risk considerations in relation to this report.
CONCLUSION
30. There were two illegal encampments in 2021 which resulted in a cost to the Council of
nearly £2,000, however these were the first such encampments for at least 10 years
and probably longer.
31. The installation of height barriers would:


create additional parking demand in the nearby residential areas which are often
already lined with cars



cause difficulty for market traders needing to park their vehicles on the car park on
market days



prevent access to vehicles needing to make deliveries to the rear of the shops.

Page 22

32. It is important to note that no other district centres currently have height or lockable
barriers at their entrance and exit, and to agree to install them at Portchester Precinct
car park could set a precedent for other district centres who may also request them.
33. The Council’s experience is that openable barriers are easily accessed by travellers and
would not be a fail-safe way to resolve the issue.
Appendices: Appendices 1 & 2 – Photographs of Portchester car park
Background Papers: None
Reference Papers: None
Enquiries: For further information on this report please contact Ian Rickman. (Ext 4773)

Page 23

Appendi
x1

Page 25

Appendix 2

Page 27

